

ORIGINAL

ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15 ("MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC"), ARTICLE 3 ("PARKING METERS, PARKING PERMITS, AND MUNICIPAL ATTENDANT PARKING LOTS"), SECTION 15-3-18 (PARKING RATES; PARKING METERS, PAY BY SPACE MACHINES, VILLAGE OPERATED PARKING STRUCTURES, PERMIT, EXTENDED PASS, VALET AND DAYTIME ON STREET PERMIT PARKING") OF THE OAK PARK VILLAGE CODE

BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Oak Park, Cook County, Illinois, in the exercise of their home rule powers, as follows:

Section 1. Village Code Amended. Chapter 15 ("Motor Vehicles and Traffic"), Article 3 ("Parking Meters, Parking Permits, and Municipal Attendant Parking Lots"), Section 15-3-18 ("Parking Rates; Parking Meters, Pay by Space Machines, Village Operated Parking Structures, Permit Extended Pass, Valet and Daytime On Street Parking") of the Oak Park Village Code is amended by deleting the overstricken language and adding the underlined language as follows:

15-3-18: PARKING RATES; PARKING METERS, PAY BY SPACE MACHINES, VILLAGE OPERATED PARKING STRUCTURES, PERMIT, EXTENDED PASS, VALET AND DAYTIME ON STREET PERMIT PARKING:

Persons parking vehicles in Village owned and/or operated parking spaces designated by the Village for use by the general public as metered pay by space plate, Village operated parking structures, permit parking, extended overnight pass parking ~~valet permit parking in designated areas during designated hours~~, shall pay a fee to the Village in accordance with the following rate schedule:

A. High Parking Demand Area: Pay by space plate machine and parking meter rates for all persons, ~~except full time and part time retail employees at designated locations~~, in the high parking demand area from and including Harlem on the west to and including Euclid on the east and from and including Ontario (from Harlem to Kenilworth) and Lake Street (from Kenilworth to Euclid) on the north to and including the north side of North Boulevard on the south and excluding from the high parking demand area all commuter areas set forth in subsection 15-3-18C of this section and depicted on the map hereinafter set forth as map exhibit 1 on file with the Village except the following locations:

~~All metered parking on North Boulevard, between Grove and Euclid~~

~~All metered parking on South Boulevard, between Grove and Euclid~~

~~Lot 13 (U.S. Bank)~~

~~Lot 16 (Calvary Church)~~

Marion Street south of South Boulevard

Pleasant Street, between south Marion Street and the north-south alley east of Marion Street

Pleasant Street, between south Marion Street and the north-south alley west of Marion Street

All ~~twelve (12) hour~~ pay by plate machines: The fee shall be ~~twenty five~~ fifty cents (~~\$0.25~~ \$0.50) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking for the first three (3) hours after which the fee shall be ~~seventy five cents~~ one dollar and fifty cents (~~\$0.75~~ \$1.50) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.

1. All ~~twelve (12) hour~~ pay by plate machines: The fee shall be ~~twenty five cents (\$0.25)~~ for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking for the first three (3) hours after which the fee shall be ~~seventy five cents (\$0.75)~~ for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking. All parking meters: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.

2. ~~All ten (10) and twelve (12) hour pay by space machines and parking meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.~~

3. ~~All four (4) and six (6) hour pay by space machines and parking meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.~~

4. ~~All one, two (2), three (3) hour and ninety (90) minute pay by space machines and parking meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.~~

5. ~~All fifteen (15) minute pay by space machines and parking meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.~~

6 2. All pay by ~~space~~ plate and metered parking shall be free of charge for up to two (2) hours at pay by ~~space~~ plate and metered parking spaces from Ontario Street on the north to Pleasant Street on the south, including south Marion Street, to Harlem Avenue on the west to Euclid Avenue on the east, ~~except from North Boulevard on the north to South Boulevard on the south to Forest Avenue on the west to Kenilworth Avenue on the east~~, on the following dates:

July 4

The day after Thanksgiving Day

Every Saturday that falls after Thanksgiving Day and prior to December 25

Unless otherwise set forth in this section, the rate for each pay by ~~space~~ plate machine and parking meter shall be the rate set forth on the face of the machine and/or meter as previously approved by the Village Board.

B. Medium Parking Demand Areas: Pay by ~~space~~ plate machine and parking meter rates in the medium parking demand areas as depicted on the map hereinafter set forth as map exhibit 1, on file with the Village, and described as follows:

Area 1: Harlem on the west to and including Euclid on the east and from Paulina (from Harlem to Marion) and Chicago (from Marion to Euclid) on the north, to the north side of Ontario (from Harlem to Forest) and the north side of Lake (from ~~Forest~~ Kenilworth to Euclid) on the south.

Area 2: Harlem on the west to and including ~~Euclid~~ East on the east and from South Boulevard on the north to and including Madison on the south.

Area 3: Euclid on the west to and including Cuyler on the east to and including Lake on the north to North Boulevard on the south.

Area 4: Lombard on the west to and including Austin on the east and from Washington on the north to Adams on the south.

Area 5: Grove on the west to and including Wesley on the east, and from Van Buren on the north to and including Lexington on the south.

Area 6: Highland on the west to and including Lombard on the east and from Van Buren on the north to and including Flournoy on the south.

~~Area 7: Harlem on the west to and including Home on the east and Grove on the west to Euclid on the east along both sides of South Boulevard.~~

~~Area 8: Harlem on the west to and including Home on the east and from Kenilworth on the west to Euclid on the east along both sides of North Boulevard.~~

~~Area 9: Parking lots leased or owned by the Village containing meters for public use, as follows:~~

~~Lot 13 (U.S. Bank)~~

~~Lot 16 (Calvary Church)~~

1. All ~~twelve (12) hour~~ pay by plate machines: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking for the first three (3) hours after which the fee shall be seventy-five cents (\$0.75) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.

2. All ~~ten (10) and twelve (12) hour pay by space machines and parking meters:~~ The fee shall

~~be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines and effective April 1, 2018 for parking meters. All parking meters: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.~~

~~3. All four (4) and six (6) hour pay by space machines and parking meters: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines and effective April 1, 2018 for parking meters.~~

~~4. All one, two (2), three (3) hour and ninety (90) minute pay by space machines and parking meters: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines and effective April 1, 2018 for parking meters.~~

~~5. All fifteen (15) minute pay by space machines and parking meters: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines and effective April 1, 2018 for parking meters.~~

~~6~~ 3. All pay by space plate and metered parking shall be free of charge for up to two (2) hours at pay by space plate and metered parking spaces from Van Buren Street on the north to Lexington Street on the south to Grove Avenue on the west to Euclid Avenue on the east on the following dates:

July 4

The day after Thanksgiving Day

Every Saturday that falls after Thanksgiving Day and prior to December 25

Unless otherwise set forth in this section, the rate for each pay by space plate machine and parking meter shall be the rate set forth on the face of the machine and/or meter as previously approved by the Village Board.

C. Pay by Space Plate Machine and Parking Meter Rates in Commuter Areas from ~~Home on the West To Grove on the East and from~~ Euclid on the West to Austin on the East and including North Boulevard on the North to and including South Boulevard on the South, as depicted on the map hereinafter set forth as map exhibit 1 on file with the Village:

1. The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, ~~effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines, effective May 1, 2018 for all parking meters north of North Boulevard, and effective June 4, 2018 for all parking meters south of South Boulevard.~~

D. Pay by-Space Plate Machine and Parking Meter Rates in all areas of the Village not within the High or Medium Parking Demand or Commuter Areas designated In Subsections 15-3-18A, B and C of this Section:

- ~~1. All ten (10) hour meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines, effective May 1, 2018 for all parking meters north of North Boulevard, and effective June 4, 2018 for all parking meters south of South Boulevard.~~
- ~~2. All four (4) and six (6) hour meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines, effective May 1, 2018 for all parking meters north of North Boulevard, and effective June 4, 2018 for all parking meters south of South Boulevard.~~
- ~~3. All one, two (2), three (3) hour and ninety (90) minute meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines, effective May 1, 2018 for all parking meters north of North Boulevard, and effective June 4, 2018 for all parking meters south of South Boulevard.~~
- ~~4. All fifteen (15) minute meters: The fee shall be twenty five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking, effective March 1, 2018 for pay by space machines, effective May 1, 2018 for all parking meters north of North Boulevard, and effective June 4, 2018 for all parking meters south of South Boulevard.~~
1. All pay by plate machines: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.
2. All parking meters: The fee shall be twenty-five cents (\$0.25) for each fifteen (15) minutes of parking.

Unless otherwise set forth in this section, the rate for each parking meter shall be the rate set forth on the face of the meter as previously approved by the Village Board.

E. Oak Park Business Employee Discount Parking at Village Designated Public Parking Locations:

1. Employers of full and part time employees who work within Oak Park may purchase parking time from the Village a discount parking reduced fee card in designated public parking locations for their employees, ~~only by purchasing magnetic cards for use in such parking locations.~~
2. Employers may purchase ~~either an eighty (80) hour or two hundred (200) hour magnetic card~~ a reduced fee card for each of their employees by providing the full name, work status (full or part time), hourly rate of pay and vehicle identification, registration, make and model information to the Village.

3. ~~Each hour purchased on a magnetic card shall cost twenty cents (\$0.20) plus one dollar (\$1.00) per card for the cost of the disposable card. Eighty (80) hour cards shall therefore cost a total of seventeen dollars (\$17.00) per card and two hundred (200) hour cards shall cost a total of forty one dollars (\$41.00) per card. No more than one card per qualified employee shall be sold to an employer during any one month. Each quarterly reduced fee card shall cost \$3.00.~~
4. ~~Cards~~ Reduced fee cards shall be sold to Oak Park employers for the benefit of their employees who work in Oak Park and earn an hourly wage of twenty dollars (\$20.00) per hour or less on a first come, first served basis. ~~Cards~~ Reduced fee cards shall be sold on a quarterly basis and may be purchased by employers between the fifteenth day of the month preceding the start of the quarter and the fifth day of the first month of said quarter each month between the twenty fifth of each month and the fifth of the following month on a first come, first served basis. Once purchased, reduced fee cards are nonrefundable, ~~and cards expire a minimum of forty five (45) days following purchase regardless of utilization.~~
5. If it is determined that either an employer or their employee has used a ~~card~~ reduced fee card in a manner inconsistent with this section, the employer shall be prohibited from purchasing employee discount parking.
6. Employee discount parking shall be available in the following lots:
 - a. ~~Eighty Two Hundred (80 200)~~ spaces at the Holley Court Garage at 1125 Ontario, roof level only.
 - b. ~~Forty One Hundred and fifty (40 150)~~ spaces at the Avenue Garage at 720 North Boulevard, roof level only.
7. The ~~Parking and Mobility~~ Development Customer Services Director shall establish the actual number of ~~part time employee discount parking cards and full time employee discount parking cards~~ reduced fee cards that may be sold per ~~month~~ quarter based upon utilization.
8. The fee schedule for the Oak Park Business Employee Discount Parking at the Holley Court and The Avenue garages is as follows:

<u>Holley Court & The Avenue Garages</u>	
<u>Hours</u>	<u>Price</u>
<u>0 to 1.5</u>	<u>FREE</u>
<u>1.5 to 6</u>	<u>\$2</u>
<u>6 to 12</u>	<u>\$3</u>
<u>12+</u>	<u>Daily Rates</u>

F. Village Operated Multilevel Parking Structures Parking Rates (Except For The Oak Park River Forest High School Parking Structure): The fee for parking in Village operated multilevel parking structures other than by meter or permit (except for the Oak Park River Forest High School parking structure) on Monday through Saturday shall be as follows:

<u>Duration</u>	<u>Parking Fee</u>
<u>0 to 1.5 hours</u> <u>1 hour</u>	Free
1.5 <u>1 to 2.5 hours</u>	<u>\$2.00</u>
<u>2.5 to 3.5 hours</u>	<u>3.00</u>
<u>3.5 to 4.5 hours</u>	<u>4.00</u>
<u>4.5 to 5.5 hours</u>	4.72 <u>5.00</u>
<u>5.5 to 6.5 hours</u>	5.67 <u>6.00</u>
<u>6.5 to 10 hours</u>	10.38 <u>11.00</u>
<u>10 to 24 hours</u>	15.09 <u>16.00</u>

Garage fees shall be inclusive of any applicable tax that the Village is required to collect and remit. Parking in all Village operated multilevel parking structures (except for the Oak Park River Forest High School parking structure) shall be free of charge on the following dates:

July 4

The day after Thanksgiving Day

Every Saturday that falls after Thanksgiving Day and prior to December 25

G. Oak Park River Forest High School Parking Structure: The fee for parking in Village operated multilevel parking structures known as the Oak Park River Forest High School shall be fifty cents (\$0.50) per hour during times designated as public parking. The hourly parking fee shall be eliminated during times that the parking structure is reserved for Friday evening football parking established by special use permit. Public parking in the Oak Park River Forest High School shall be free during farmers' market Saturdays.

H. High Volume Business Parking Validation Program:

1. High Volume Business Parking Validation Program; Authorized for Holley Court Multilevel Parking Structure:

- a. Businesses patronized by customers on a high volume, short duration daily basis, shall be eligible for participation in the Village Parking Validation Program
- b. Businesses which are patronized by more than four thousand (4,000) customers per week for an average of at least one and one-half (1 1/2) hours per visit shall be eligible for participation in the Village's High Volume Business Parking Validation Program ("program").
- c. Participation in the program shall provide the participating business with the ability to offer its customers up to one hour of free parking in the Holley Court multilevel parking structure in addition to the one free hour of parking already provided by the Village to all members of the public who park in the structure.
- d. The participating business shall acquire at its own cost the specific ticket validation machine authorized by the Village as compatible with Village equipment and update and/or replace same as required by Village.

(1) The machine shall be encoded by the Village with a code which will identify the participating business on each parking ticket validated by the machine; and

(2) The machine shall be programmed by the Village to provide each validated ticket with one hour of free parking in addition to the first hour of free parking provided by the Village to all members of the public who park in the structure.

(A) The Village shall charge the participating business a fee of fifty cents (\$0.50) per one hour of free parking authorized by each validated parking ticket.

(B) The validation machine shall be maintained on the premises of the participating business and shall be used by the business to validate the parking tickets provided by the Holley Court parking structure system to the business' customers.

(C) At the time a business enters the program, the Village shall estimate the number of customer parking tickets in the Holley Court multilevel parking structure which shall be validated by that business each month and shall multiply that number by fifty cents (\$0.50) and shall bill that total amount to the business fifteen (15) days prior to the first of each month for which ticket validation is provided for the first six (6) months the business is in the program.

- (D) The participating business shall provide the Village with full payment of the monthly bill within fifteen (15) days of receipt of same.
- (E) At the end of the first six (6) months of each business' participation in the Validation Program and each six (6) months thereafter, the Village shall determine the actual average number of business customers participating in the Validation Program and shall multiply that number by fifty cents (\$0.50) and shall bill the business on a monthly basis at the newly established rate for the subsequent six (6) month period.
- (F) The participating business shall provide ticket validation to its customers only.
- (G) The participating business shall cooperate fully with the Village in providing the Village with access to the validation machine and customer attendance records as the Village deems necessary for the Village to effectively administer the program.
- (H) The Village shall provide the participating business upon request with the calculation upon which the new billing is based and copies of the record information upon which such calculation is based.
- (I) In the event that a participating business violates the terms and conditions of the Validation Program, the Village reserves the right to suspend or terminate the business' participation in the program upon giving the business at least ten (10) days' prior written notice of said violation(s) and an opportunity to respond to or correct same before suspending or terminating same.

I. Village Operated Surface Parking Lot, Parking Garage and Public Way Parking Enclave Permit Parking Rates:

1. Village Operated Surface Parking Lots: Parking in Village operated surface parking lots shall only be permitted in pay by plate parking spaces, metered parking spaces, or by permit, ~~or extended pass~~ in designated parking spaces. Such lots may operate exclusively as pay by plate or metered parking lots or exclusively as permit parking only lots or may operate with a combination of pay by plate, metered, and permit ~~and extended pass~~ parking spaces.

No overnight parking shall be permitted in Village operated surface parking lots without a Village issued overnight parking permit ~~or extended pass~~.

2. Village Operated Parking Garage Monthly Permit Parking Rates: Parking permits allowing for twenty-four (24) hour parking in the Holley Court and Avenue multilevel parking

structures shall be sold for one hundred ~~thirty-two~~ fifty-seven dollars (~~\$132.00~~ 157) per vehicle, per month.

3. Village Operated Multilevel Parking Structure, Parking Lot And Enclave Public Way Parking Quarterly Permit Parking Rates: Parking permits allowing for twenty four (24) hour, daytime and overnight parking in Village- operated multilevel parking structures, permit lots, and public way permit parking enclaves shall be sold at the following rates:

- a. High Demand Area Permit Parking Lots and Public Way Enclaves: In Village-operated permit parking lots, and public way permit parking enclaves located within the high parking demand area as designated in subsection 15-3-18A of this section, rates shall be as follows:

(1) Resident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred fifty-seven dollars (\$257.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred twenty-seven dollars (\$227.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred seventy-seven dollars (\$177.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(2) Nonresident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Three hundred thirty-two dollars (\$332.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred eighty-two dollars (\$282.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ninety-seven dollars (\$197.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

- (3) Corporate Rates: Corporate rates shall only apply to a licensed business located in the Village of Oak Park which has made application to the Village and been designated as a corporate account for the purposes of quarterly parking permits and purchases a minimum of five (5) quarterly permits, per quarter.

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred fifty-seven dollars (\$257.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred twenty-seven dollars

(\$227.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred seventy-seven dollars (\$177.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

- b. High Demand Area Multilevel Parking Structures: In Village-operated multilevel parking structures located within the high parking demand area as designated in subsection 15-3-18A of this section, rates shall be as follows:

(1) Rates effective April 1, 2023:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~sixty-seven~~ ninety-two dollars (~~\$267.00~~ 292.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred ~~thirty-seven~~ sixty-two dollars (~~\$237.00~~ 262.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: ~~One hundred eighty-seven~~ Two hundred twelve dollars (~~\$187.00~~ 212.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

* * * *

Section 2. Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance. All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its approval, passage and publication as provided by law on January 1, 2023.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

ADOPTED this 21st day of November, 2022, pursuant to a roll call vote at follows:

Voting	Aye	Nay	Abstain	Absent
President Scaman	✓			
Trustee Buchanan	✓			
Trustee Enya	✓			
Trustee Parakkat	✓			
Trustee Robinson	✓			
Trustee Taglia	✓			
Trustee Wesley	✓			

APPROVED this 21st day of November, 2022.

Vicki Scaman
Vicki Scaman, Village President

ATTEST

Christine M. Waters
Christina M. Waters, Village Clerk

Published in pamphlet form this 21st day of November, 2022.

Christine M. Waters
Christina M. Waters, Village Clerk